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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022

To the Shareholders,

Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wethaq Takaful Insurance
Company (K.S.C.P) (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

' We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

: | responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are

| independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have

| fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

1 opinion.

1
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of the most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have identified the matters described below as the key audit matter:

ASSURANCE, TAX AND CONSULTING

Baker Tilly Firm in Kuwait is a member of the Baker Tilly International network, the members of which are separate and independent legal entities.
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Valuation of Investment properties

The Group's investment properties represent a significant part of the total assets and
comprise of buildings outside Kuwait. The valuation of investment properties is a significant
judgment area requiring a number of assumptions including capital returns, future rental
income, occupancy rates, right of use contract periods and renewability. Changes in these
assumptions and judgments could lead to significant movements in valuation of investment
properties and consequently unrealized gains or losses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The Group's disclosures about its investment properties are included in
Note 12.

Our audit procedures included assessing the appropriateness of the Management's process
for reviewing and assessing the work of the external valuer including the Management's
consideration of competence and independence of the external valuer. We also assessed
the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies used in assessing the fair value of the
investment properties including discussions with the Management and challenging the
estimates, assumptions and valuation methodology used in assessing the fair value of
investment properties. We also obtained the underlying information provided by the
Management to the independent valuer to confirm that it was consistent with the information
obtained during our audit.

Other information included in the Group's Annual Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2022

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the
information included in the Group's Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December

|
|
|
2
|
|
|
)
2
|
1
|
|
|
|
B 2022, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
R
|
B
|
|
|
|
|
R
)
|
|
|
|
|

We obtained the Report of the Parent Company's Board of Directors, prior to the date of our
auditor's report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after
the date of our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

Pursuant to ISA 570, we draw the attention to Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Company incurred accumulated losses of KD 6,918,129
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022. These events or conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent
Company and the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report
of the Parent Company's Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial
statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the
Parent Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory
was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, or of the Parent
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2022 that might have had a material effect on the business or
financial position of the Parent Company.
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We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any
violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Establishment of Capital
Markets Authority and its Executive Regulations, as amended, or of Law No. 125 of 2019
concerning the Regulation of Insurance during the year ended 31 December 2022 that might
have had a material effect on the business or the financial position of the Parent Company,
except for the following:

Violation of Ministry of Commerce & Industry’s Resolution No. 21 of 2021 issuing the
Executive Regulations of Law No. 125 of 2019 concerning the Practice of the Auditor's
Profession, with respect to the appointment of an actuary registered with the Insurance
Regulatory Unit as the Company appointed Dr. Ahmed Al-Sayed Mustafa Muharram Firm,
where the actuary is not registered in the Insurance Unit's Register of Actuaries as at
31 December 2022.

S

Ali Mohamad Al-Hamad

License No. 111-A

Ali Al-Hamad & Partners

Independent member of Baker Tilly International

State of Kuwait, 6 March 2023
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Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)

and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment deposits

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Amount due from
policyholders

Investment properties
Property and equipment
other receivables

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Share premium
Treasury shares
Treasury shares reserve
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve

Fair value reserve

Foreign currency translation
reserve

Employees' stock option plan
reserve

Accumulated losses
Total equity

Liabilities

Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

10
12

13

13

14
14

Naser Enad Faisal Al-Enezi

Chairman

31 December

31 December

31 December 2021 2020
2022 (Audited — (Audited —
Restated) Restated)

43,110 50,251 11,169
82,915 61,628 196,585
262,191 262,838 223,337
860,768 1,109,629 931,764

36,235 - -
2,853,938 2,872,372 2,828,384
80,999 8,613 6,415
5,886 10,402 9,340
4,226,042 4,375,733 4,206,994
11,025,000 11,025,000 11,025,000
- 7,340,937 7,340,937
(50,489) (50,489) (50,489)
3,508 3,508 3,508
388,139 388,139 388,139
- 388,139 388,139
(425,214) (176,353) (354,218)
(7,100) 4,686 153
65,964 65,964 65,964
(6,918,129) (14,730,213) (14,691,128)
4,081,679 4,259,318 4,116,005
144,363 116,415 90,989
144,363 116,415 90,989
4,226,042 4,375,733 4,206,994

\\\ /
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Abdullah Meshari Ahmed Al-Humaidhi
Vice Chairman

The notes on pages 6 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Wethagq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

2021
Note 2022 (Audited -
Restated)

Revenue
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2,363) 39,501
Rental income 35,194 44,691
Dividend income 7,220 7,029
Income from investment deposits 2,601 5,499
Management fees from policyholders 65,303 154,587
Other income 30,000 371
Revaluation of investment properties 12 (18,434) 43,988

119,521 295,666
Expenses
General and administrative expenses (33,503) (33,515)
Expected credit losses - (292,060)

(33,503) (325,575)
Profit/ (loss) for the year before deductions 86,018 (29,909)
National Labor Support Tax (2,150) (6,554)
Zakat (860) (2,622)
Profit/ (loss) for the year 83,008 (39,085)
Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (Fils) 15 0.756 (0.356)

The notes on pages 6 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for the financial year ended

31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
operations

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Net change in fair value arising during the year
Total other compressive (loss)/ income
Total compressive (loss)/ income for the year

2021
2022 (Audited —
Restated)

83,008 (39,085)
(11,786) 4,533
(11,786) 4,533
(248,861) 177,865
(260,647) 182,398
(177,639) 143,313

The notes on pages 6 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

3
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Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Income from investment deposits
Dividend income
Change in fair value of investment properties

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and other payables
Amount due from policyholders

Net cash generated from /(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Paid for purchase of property, equipment and other
assets

Income from investment deposits

Movement in investment deposits

Dividends received

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing
activities

(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022 2021
83,008 (39,085)
2,363 (39,501)
(2,601) (5,499)
(7,220) (7,029)
18,434 (43,988)
93,984 (135,102)
27,950 28,897
(36,235) -
85,699 (106,205)
1,716 -
(83,090) (2,198)
2,601 5,499
(21,287) 134,957
7,220 7,029
(92,840) 145,287
(7,141) 39,082
50,251 11,169
43,110 50,251

The notes on pages 6 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

1- Incorporation and activities

Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (the "Parent Company) is a Kuwaiti Public
Shareholding Company that was incorporated on 31 July 2000 and carries on its
business in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 125 of 2019 regarding the
Regulation of Insurance under the IRU Resolution No. 24 of 2022 licensing the
companies that regularized their status according to the Law and its Executive
Regulations, as amended. The Parent Company’s shares are listed on Boursa

Kuwait.

The amendments were registered in the Commercial Register under No. 82421 on
11 June 2014. The shares of the Parent Company were listed on Boursa Kuwait on
20 December 2004. The Parent Company is supervised by Capital Markets Authority.

On 28 August 2019, the new Insurance Law No. 125 of 2019 was issued. Such Law

is effective from 1 September 2019 and supersedes Law No. 24 of 1961.

The Executive Regulations of Law No. 125 of 2019 regarding the Regulation of
Insurance were issued on 11 March 2022. Pursuant to Article No. 2 of the Executive
Regulations, insurance companies shall have a one-year grace period starting from

the date of issuance of the Executive Regulations to implement the new Law.

The Group comprises the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as disclosed in

Note 6.

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of the Investment Dar Company (K.S.C.C)

(“Ultimate Parent Company”).

The objectives for which the Parent Company is incorporated are as follows:

First: Carry on all Takaful, mutual and reinsurance business of all forms in

accordance with the provisions of Islamic Sharia and governing laws.

Second: To achieve its above-mentioned objectives and as per its Articles of
Association, the Parent Company shall have authority to conduct the following

business and acts as the Board of Directors deems appropriate:

a. Acquire and gain the right to all or any part of moveable or immovable properties,
as it deems necessary, or any privileges that the Company believes to be

necessary or appropriate for its business or required for growing its funds.

b. Carry out transactions and enter into all contracts with all legal dispositions as it
deems necessary and suitable to achieve and facilitate its objectives on the

conditions it elects.

c. Purchase, sell, mortgage, lease, replace, possess, or endorse in any manner
whatsoever any lands, real estate properties, securities, sukuk, stocks or any
other moveable or real estate property, or sell, lease, mortgage or dispose of all

or part of the company's moveable or real estate property and funds.

d. Provide advisories and conduct technical studies in insurance or reinsurance
industry for companies and other entities directly interested in engaging in

Takaful insurance or reinsurance business.
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Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

€. Act as valuer or appraiser in insurance industry and agent for insurance or
reinsurance companies to perform all activities that are consistent with the

Islamic Sharia after obtaining the necessary licenses.

f.  Invest all or part of the Company's moveable property or real estate properties in
different sectors as it deems appropriate in accordance with governing laws and

resolutions.

g. Merge with, incorporate or participate in incorporating and subscribing for shares
in companies, buy and sell companies, shares and support them in any form in

line with the Company's objectives as per applicable laws.

h. Utilize the financial surpluses available with the Company through investing the

same m financial portfolios managed by specialized companies and entities.

The Parent Company may carry out the above-mentioned businesses in the State of
Kuwait or abroad directly or through agency. The Parent Company may have an
interest or participate in any way with the entities that engage in similar business that
help it achieve its objectives in Kuwait or abroad and it may establish, participate,

purchase, merge with such entities.

Takaful is an Islamic alternative to a conventional insurance and investment
programs, based on the mutual funds concept, where each policyholder will receive
his share in the surplus arising from the insurance activities, in accordance with the
Parent Company's articles of association and the approval of Fatwa and Sharia

Supervisory Board.

The Parent Company conducts business on behalf of the policyholders and advances
funds to the policyholders' operations as and when required. The shareholders are
responsible for liabilities incurred by policyholders in the event the policyholders' fund

is in deficit and the operations are liquidated.

The Parent Company holds the physical custody and title of all assets related to the
policyholders' and shareholders' operations. Such assets and liabilities together with

the results of policyholders' lines of business are disclosed in the notes.

The Parent Company maintains separate books of accounts for policyholders and
shareholders. Income and expenses clearly attributable to either activity is recorded
in the respective accounts. The Management and the board of directors determine

the basis of allocation of expenses from joint operations.

All takaful insurance and investment activities are conducted in accordance with

Islamic Sharia, as approved by Fatwa and Sharia Supervisory Board.

The address of the Parent Company's registered office is the State of Kuwait, Shaq,

Khaled Ibn Al-Waleed Street, City Tower, Floor 12.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on 6 March

2023.




Wethagq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise Stated)

2- Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and Interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASB.

3- Changes in accounting policies
31 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
3-1-1 Standards effective for the current year

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those used in the previous year except for the
following new and revised standards issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) during the year.

Standard, Description Effective date
interpretation,
amendments

Amendment to IFRS 16, As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) Annual periods
‘Leases’ — COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have been granted beginning on or
related rent concessions, to lessees. In May 2020, the IASB published an after 1 April
Extension of the practical amendment to IFRS 16 that provided an 2021
expedient optional practical expedient for lessees from

assessing whether a rent concession related to

COVID-19 is a lease modification. On 31 March

2021, the IASB published an additional

amendment to extend the date of the practical

expedient from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

Lessees can select to account for such rent

concessions in the same way as they would if

they were not lease modifications. In many

cases, this will result in accounting for the

concession as variable lease payments in the

period(s) in which the event or condition that

triggers the reduced payment occurs.

A number of narrow- Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Annual periods
scope amendments to combinations’ update IFRS 3 so that it refers to beginning on or
IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the after 1 January
and some annual 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a 2022.

improvements on IFRS requirement that, for obligations within the
1,IFRS 9, IAS 41 and scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
IFRS 16 Liabilities and Contingent Assets, an acquirer
applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be
within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the
acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether
the obligating event that gives rise to a liability
to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition

8



1 - N i e o = —
; ! e EE NN

Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)

and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

date

Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting
from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced
while the company is preparing the asset for its
intended use. Instead, a company will
recognise such sales proceeds and related
cost in statement of income.

Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets~ Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the cost of
fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour or materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would
be the allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

Annual improvements make minor
amendments to IFRS 1, ‘First-time Adoption of
IFRS’, IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, IAS 41,
‘Agriculture’ and the lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, ‘Leases’.

3-1-2 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has
not adopted the following new and revised International Financial Reporting

Standards in issued but are not yet effective.

Standard, interpretation,
amendments

Amendments to IAS 1,
Presentation of financial
statements’, on
classification of liabilities

Description Effective date

The amendments clarify that the Deferred until
classification of liabilities as current or accounting
non-current is based on rights that are in  periods starting
existence at the end of the reporting not earlier than
period, specify that classification is 1 January 2024

unaffected by expectations about
whether an entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of a liability, explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are
complied with at the end of the reporting
period, and introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements and
IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality
Judgements—Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

Narrow scope
amendments to IAS 1,
IFRS Practice statement 2
and IAS 8

Amendment to IAS 12-
deferred tax related to
assets and liabilities
arising from a single
transaction

IFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts” amended in
June 2020

settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

Note that the IASB has issued a new
exposure draft proposing changes to this
amendment.

The IASB is currently considering further
amendments to the requirements in IAS
1 on classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, including deferring the
application of the January 2020
amendments.

The amendments change the
requirements in IAS 1 with regard to
disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments replace all instances of the
term ‘significant accounting policies’ with
‘material accounting policy information’.
Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements.

The IASB has also developed guidance
and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the ‘four-
step materiality process’ described in
IFRS Practice Statement 2.

The amendments aim to improve
accounting policy disclosures and to
help users of the financial statements to
distinguish  between  changes in
accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies.

The amendments introduce a further
exception from the initial recognition
exemption. Under the amendments, an
entity does not apply the initial
recognition exemption for transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

This standard supersedes IFRS 4, which
currently provides a variety of
accounting practices for insurance

Annual periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2023

Annual periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2023

Annual periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2023.

Annual periods
beginning on or
after 1 January

10
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

4-

4-1

Narrow-scope amendment
to the transition
requirements of IFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts”

contracts. IFRS 17 will introduce
fundamental changes to the accounting
process adopted by all entities that issue
insurance contracts or investment
contracts with discretionary participation
features.

The amendment is applicable only on
insurance companies’ transition to the
new Standard. However, it does not
impact any other requirements of IFRS
17.

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and IFRS
9 ‘Financial Instruments’ have different
transition requirements. For some
insurers, these differences can cause
temporary accounting mismatches
between financial assets and insurance
contract liabilities in the comparative
information they present in their financial
statements when applying IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 for the first time.

The amendment will help insurers avoid
these temporary accounting mismatches
and, therefore, will improve the
usefulness of comparative information
for investors through providing insurers
with an option for the presentation of
comparative information about financial
assets.

2023.

Annual periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2023.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the period of
initial application and that the adoption of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments may have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in the period of initial application.

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinar ("KD"), which
is the functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company and are prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investments at fair value through profit
or loss, investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
investment properties, which are measured at fair value.

11
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and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

The Group has elected to present the "statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income" in two separate statements: the "consolidated statement of

profit or loss" and "consolidated statement of other comprehensive income".

4-2 Basis of consolidation

The Parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the subsidiary. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
consolidated when the Parent Company controls a subsidiary and the consolidation
will cease when the Parent Company loses control over the subsidiary. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates, which are typically not
more than three months from that of the Parent Company, using consistent
accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the effect of any significant
transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the

Parent Company's financial statements.

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on
consolidation, including unrealized gains and losses on transactions between Group
companies. Where unrealized losses on intra-Group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted

by the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are recognized from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the

effective date of disposal, as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a

subsidiary's profit or loss and net assets that is not held by the Group.

The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries between the
owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective

ownership interests.

When a controlling interest in the subsidiaries is disposed of, the difference between
the selling price and the net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and
goodwill is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS
9 when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture. However, changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the noncontrolling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and

attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

12



Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

4-3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations.
The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair
value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the
acquirer recognizes the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. If the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the

acquisition date through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group recognizes identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination regardless of whether they have been previously recognized in
the acquiree's financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and

liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is
calculated as the excess of the sum of a) the fair value of the consideration
transferred, b) the recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and c) the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree,
over the acquisition date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of
identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount (i.e.,
gain on a bargain purchase) is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss immediately.

4-4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination
that are not individually identified and separately recognized. For information on how
goodwill is initially determined, goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses followed by impairment testing procedures.

4-5 Dividend income

Dividend income, other than those from associates, are recognized at the time the

right to receive payment is established.

4-6 Income from investment deposits

Income from investment deposit is recognized on a time proportion basis taking

account of the principal outstanding and profit rate applicable.

4-7  Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

upon utilization of the service or at the date of their origin.

13
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

4-8 Taxation
4-8-1 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of net taxable profit of the Group in
accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation's Board of
Directors' Resolution, which states that income from associates and subsidiaries,
Board of Directors' remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded
from profit for the year when determining the contribution. The Parent Company has

no liabilities towards KFAS for this year due to accumulated losses.

4-8-2 National Labor Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of
Finance Resolution No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of net taxable profit of the Group for the
year after deducting Board of Directors’ remuneration for the year. As per the Law,
income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies,
which are subjected to NLST have to be deducted from the profit for the year. Under
the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses to the future years or any

carry back to prior year is permitted.

4-8-3 Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of net profit of the Parent Company in
accordance with Law No. 46 of 2006 concerning Zakat and Contribution by Public
and Closed Shareholding Companies to the State Budget and the Ministry of Finance
Resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007 for the year ended

31 December 2022.

4-8-4 Taxation on overseas subsidiaries

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries is calculated in accordance with Law No. 2 of 2008
amending Decree No. 3 of 1955 concerning Kuwait Income Tax on the basis of the
tax rates applicable and prescribed according to the prevailing laws, regulations and
international agreements of the countries where these subsidiaries operate with the

State of Kuwait.

4-9  Segment reporting

The Group has two operating segments: takaful insurance and investment. In
identifying these operating segments, the Management generally follows the Group's
service lines representing its main products and services. Each of these operating
segments is managed separately as each requires different approaches and other

resources. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm's length prices.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those
used in its consolidated financial statements. In addition, assets or liabilities, which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating segment, are

not allocated to a segment.

4-10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of these instruments.

14
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through other comprehensive income) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the timeframe

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either

amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortized cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

FVTOCI:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election at initial

recognition of a financial asset:

e The Company may irrevocably elect to classifying subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria

are met; and

e The Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at fair value through profit or loss

if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt

instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant periods.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of

the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand,
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial

asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group recognizes
interest income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized

cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial
asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Parent Company may make irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at
FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business

combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

* It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term: or
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e  Oninitial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit taking; or

e ltis a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a

designated and effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment’s revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income on disposal off these investments, instead, they will be

transferred to retained earnings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for

trading as at FVTOCI on initial application of IFRS 9.

Dividends on these investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established in accordance
with IAS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “investment income” line item in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each

reporting period, specifically:

For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognized in

other comprehensive income in the investment revaluation reserve.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applied the simplified approach and measures the loss allowance for
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as

well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group writes off receivables when there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,

or when the receivables are over two years past due.

The Group applies the general approach to providing for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, for financial instruments in cash and bank balances. The
Company uses external rating agency credit grades for assessing credit risk on these
financial assets and these published grades are continuously monitored and updated.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified under the following items, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method through :

1- contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
2- held-for trading, or
3- designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized
cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at
amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in the 'other gains and losses' line item in
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4-11

4-12

consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for financial liabilities that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable, is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent
the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill. Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group's
management as equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at
least annually.

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's or
cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use,
the Management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit
and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the
Group's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future
reorganizations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually
for each cash-generating unit and reflect management's assessment of respective risk
profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/ or for capital
appreciation, and are accounted for using the fair value model.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, investment
properties are revalued annually and are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair values. These values are supported by market evidence
and are determined by external professional valuers with sufficient experience with
respect to both the location and the nature of the investment property. Any gain or
loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale of an investment
property is immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
within "change in fair value of investment properties" and "gain/loss on sale of
investment properties".

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
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property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up

to the date of change in use.

4-13 Leased assets

e The Group as a lessee

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key

evaluations, which are whether:

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in
the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is

made available to the Group

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its

rights within the defined scope of the contract

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the
period of use. The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct 'how and

for what purpose' the asset is used throughout the period of use.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset
and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability on the consolidated statement of financial position measured as follows:

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and
any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

incentives received).

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on
a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also

assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group's incremental

borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of
fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index
or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and

payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.
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4-14

4-15

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability is reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

e The Group as a lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its
investment properties. The Group classifies its leases as either operating or
finance leases. When the terms of a lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head-lease and sub-
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as finance lease or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use of asset arising from the head-
lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over
lease term. Initial direct cost incurred in arranging and negotiating a lease are
added to the carrying amount of the lease assets and recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Amounts due under finance leases are recognized as receivables. Finance lease
income is allocated to the accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding for the finance lease.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company's own issued shares that have been
reacquired by the Group. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method.
Under this method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a
contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in
equity, (the "treasury shares reserve"), which is not distributable. Any realized losses
are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account.
Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and
statutory reserve. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock
dividend shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces
the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Related party transactions

Related parties represent major shareholders, subsidiaries, directors and key
management personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions
are approved by the Group's management.
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Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the
respective Group entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical
cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-
monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

In the Group's consolidated financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions
of Group entities with a functional currency other than the Kuwaiti Dinar are translated
into Kuwaiti Dinar upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities in the
Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities are translated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing
rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been translated into Kuwaiti
Dinar at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are
charged/credited to consolidated statement of other comprehensive income and
recognized in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognized in
consolidated statement of changes in equity are reclassified to consolidated statement
of profit or loss and are recognized as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Qard Hassan to policyholders

Qard Hassan represents non-profit Islamic financing provided by the shareholders to
the policyholders with respect to the deficit arising from the takaful operations which
will be settled from the surplus arising from such business in future years.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably.
Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where
there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
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Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is

material.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are

disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits is remote.

5- Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires Group's
Management to make judgments, estimations and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

5-1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Group's Management
has made the following significant judgments, which have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

5-1-1 Business model assessment

The Group classifies financial assets after performing the business model test. This
test includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured and the risks
that affect the performance of the assets. Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of

those assets.

5-1-2 Classification of real estates

The Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be

classified as trading property, property under development or investment property.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in

the ordinary course of business.

The Group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the

intention of development.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate

rental income or for capital appreciation.

5-1-3 Control assessment

When determining control, the management considers whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate
returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities and ability to use its power to

affect variable return requires considerable judgement.
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5-2  Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided

below. Actual results may be substantially different.

5-2-1 Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of estimated credit losses involves estimates of loss given default and
probability of default. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in case of
default by customer. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default in
the future. The Group makes these estimates using reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement

of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant
amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not
individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a
provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical

recovery rates.

5-2-2 Fair value of financial instruments

The Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments where active market quotes are not available. This requires the
Management to develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair
values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be

achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

5-2-3 Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value
being recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group engaged
an independent valuation specialist to determine fair value as at 31 December 2022
and the valuer has used valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These
estimated fair values of the investment properties may vary from the actual prices that

would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.
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6- Subsidiaries

The details of subsidiaries are as follows:

Ownership percentage
%

Subsidiary’s Country of Principal
name incorporation activities 31 31
December December
2022 2021
Consolidated
with
shareholders
Hala Real Estate Arab Real estate %100 %100
Investment Republic of investment and
Company (L.L.C) Egypt marketing, and
purchase, sale
and lease of
land for its own
account or third
parties
Consolidated
with
policyholders
Wared Rent a State of Car rental and %100 %100
Car Company Kuwait trading in cars
(K.S.C.0) and spare parts

in the State of
Kuwait

The financial statements of Wared Rent a Car Company (K.S.C.C) and Hala Real
Estate Investment Company (L.L.C) are consolidated based on the financial
statements prepared by the managements of the subsidiaries.

The Parent Company’s ownership percentage of Hala Real Estate Investment
Company (L.L.C) includes 0.5% based on assignment of a party in favor of the Parent

Company.

7- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise of the following:

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

Cash on hand and bank balances 43,110 50,251
Investment deposits with original maturity 82915 61628
within three to twelve months ’ ’

126,025 111,879
Less: Investment deposits with original maturity
within three to twelve months (82,915) (61,628)
Cash and cash equivalents as per 43,110 50.251

consolidated statement of cash flows

As at 31 December 2022, Investment deposits carry annual effective interest rate of

5.34% (2.75% as at 31 December 2021).
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8-

10-

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent local quoted securities.
The fair value is determined as described in Note (21-1).

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Local quoted securities
Local unquoted securities
Managed portfolios
Managed funds

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
441,096 556,601
79,040 79,040
239,586 239,586
101,046 234,402
860,768 1,109,629

e Managed funds are investments in units of private equity funds. Fair value of
these investments is measured based on the net asset value provided by the
respective fund managers. The Management believes the net asset value
provided by the fund managers represents the best estimate of the fair value

available for these investments.

* A related party to the Group manages investment portfolios and funds owned by
the Parent Company amounting to KD 239,586 as at 31 December 2022 (KD

239,586 as at 31 December 2021).

Amount due from policyholders

31 December

31 December
2021 (audited

31 December
2020 (audited

2022 — restated) — restated)
Opening balance at beginning ) 6 745 170 6 727 555
of the year v e
Net movement during the year 36,235 292,060 17,615
36,235 7,037,230 6,745,170
Less: Impairment - (7,037,230) (6,745,170)
Closing balance at the end of 36,235 . )

the year

Net movement in policyholders' account represents the net fund transfers from and to
their account in addition to the Management fees from policyholders. The Parent
Company's management had decided to reduce the Management fees charged to
policyholders from 20% of gross premiums to 20% of net profit of policyholders to
enable settlement of the above due balances and also to settle the Qard Hassan
balance (Note 11) in such a way that ensures continuity of the Takaful insurance

activity of the policyholders.
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11-  Qard Hassan to policyholders’ fund

In line with the Articles of Association, policyholders' net deficit from insurance
activities has been covered by the Qard Hassan from the shareholders. The balance

of Qard Hassan provided by shareholders to the policyholders was settled.

31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 (audited 2020 (audited —
— restated) restated)
Gross amount 1,625,611 1,625,611 1,625,611
Less: impairment (1,625,611) (1,625,611) (1,625,611)
Closing balance - - -
12-  Investment properties
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 2,872,372 2,828,384
Change in fair value during the year (18,434) 43,988
Carrying value at the end of the year 2,853,938 2,872,372

e The investment property in Egypt amounting to KD 2,770,951 as at 31 December
2022 (KD 2,765,831 as at 31 December 2021) is registered in the name of a third
party who issued power of attorney to other parties, which is ultimately granted to
one of the Parent Company's directors, who provided an irrevocable general
power of attorney in favor of the Parent Company. The property is managed by a

subsidiary, i.e., Hala Real Estate Investment (L.L.C).

e The above investment properties include a right of use of hotel apartments in
Zamzam Tower in Holly Mecca, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia amounting to KD

82,987 as at 31 December 2022 (KD 106,541 as at 31 December 2021).

The fair value of the Parent Company’s investment properties as at
31 December 2022 was concluded based on the valuation conducted at that date by
independent valuers who are not related to the Group. The valuer has valid license in
each of the countries where the investment properties are located. Such valuers are
licensed by the official authorities and have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. In estimating the
fair value of these properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

The fair value was estimated according to the following levels:

» Level 2: the fair value is determined based on the comparative market prices for

the areas where the land and properties are located.

* Level 3: the fair value is determined on the basis of the income capitalization

method.
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The details of investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as

at 31 December are as follows:

Fair value Fair value
Level 2 Level 3 31 December 31 December
2022 2021
investment
property in Egypt 2,770,951 2,770,951 2,765,831
hotel apartments
in Zamzam
Tower in Holly
Mecca 82,987 82,987 106,541
Total 2,770,951 82,987 2,853,938 2,872,372
13- Equity
e Capital

The authorized, issued, and paid-up share capital of the Parent Company as at
31 December 2022 was KD 11,025,000 comprising of 110,250,000 shares of 100
Fils each (KD 11,025,000 comprising of 110,250,000 shares of 100 Fils each as

at 31 December 2021). All shares are in cash.
e Treasury Shares

The Group holds treasury shares as detailed below:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Number of shares 445,500 445,500
Percentage of issued shares 0.40% 0.40%
Market vaue (KD) 10,692 22,721
Cost (KD) 50,489 50,489

The reserves equal to the cost of held treasury shares are not available for

distribution.

14-  Statutory and voluntary reserves

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company's Articles of
Association, 10% of the profit for the year before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors'
remuneration is to be transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company’s
shareholders may resolve to discontinue such annual transfer when the statutory and

voluntary reserves exceed 50% of the paid-up share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the
payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital to be made in years when

retained earnings are not sufficient for the distribution of a dividend of that amount.

In accordance with the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for
the year before KFAS, Zakat, NLST and directors' remuneration is to be transferred to
the voluntary reserve at the discretion of the Board of Directors subject to the

approval of the general assembly.
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There are no restrictions on the distribution of voluntary reserves.
No transfers to the reserves are required in a year in which the Parent Company has
incurred a loss or where accumulated losses exist.

15-  Basic earnings/ (loss) per share

The basic earnings/ (loss) per share is computed through dividing the (loss) by
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (excluding the
treasury shares) as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

Profit/ (loss) for the year (KD) 83,008 (39,085)
Number of shares 110,250,000 110,250,000
Less: weighted average number of treasury
shares outstanding during the year (445,500) (445,500)
Weighted average number of shares 109.804.500 109.804.500
outstanding during the year U T
Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (Fils) 0.756 (0.356)

16-  Shareholders’ general assembly

On 26 April 2022, the general assembly of the shareholders approved the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the proposal of the Board of Directors not to distribute any dividends for the year
then ended.

Further, the ordinary general assembly of the shareholders held on 26 April 2022
approved the resolution to amortize the entire accumulated losses of KD 6,664,446
as at 31 December 2021 through the following:

- Using the entire voluntary reserve of KD 388,139
- Using share premium amounting to KD 6,276,307

Moreover, the ordinary general assembly of the shareholders held on 18 December
2022 approved the resolution to amortize accumulated losses amount of KD
1,064,630 using the outstanding balance of share premium.

17-  Consolidated policyholders' results by line of business and fund

The significant accounting policies used in accounting for the insurance business are
set out below. Policies used in accounting for other accounts and transactions are the
same as those adopted by the Group.

a- Revenue recognition

Premiums earned

Premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they
relate on a pro-rata basis. Unearned premiums represent the portion of net
written premiums relating to the unexpired period of coverage that extend beyond
the end of the financial year; they are calculated based on a time apportionment
basis over the exposure to policies.
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Policy issuance fees and policy acquisition costs

Policy issuance fees and policy acquisition costs are recognized at the time of
recognition of the related premium.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Group cedes and assumes certain levels of
risk in various areas of exposure with other insurance companies or reinsurers.
Such reinsurance includes quota share, excess of loss, facultative and other
forms of reinsurance on essentially all lines of business.

Reinsurance ceded or assumed are deducted from gross premium to arrive at net
written premium.
Claims

Claims, comprising amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and
related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries, are
charged to consolidated statement of policyholders' results as incurred. Claims
comprise the estimated amounts payable, in respect of claims reported to the
Group and those not reported at the financial position date. The Group generally
estimates its claims based on previous experience. Independent loss adjusters
normally estimate property claims. In addition, a provision based on the
Management's judgement and the Group's prior experience is maintained for the
cost of settling claims incurred but not reported at the consolidated financial
position date. Any difference between the provisions at the consolidated financial
position date and settlements and provisions for the following year is included in
the underwriting account for that year.

Liability adequacy test

At each consolidated financial position date, the Group assesses whether its
recognized insurance liabilities are adequate using current estimates of future
cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the
carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related deferred policy acquisition
costs) is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of
policyholders' result and an unexpired risk provision created.

The Group does not discount its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all
claims are expected to be paid within one year of the consolidated financial
position date.

Premium and reinsurance receivables

These receivables are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful debt is made when collection of
the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

Equipment

Equipment is initially recognized at acquisition cost including any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's Management.
Equipment is subsequently measured using the cost model, cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line
basis to write down the cost less estimated residual value of equipment. The
useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
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method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits arising from items of equipment.

The following useful lives are applied:
e Buildings: 20 years
e Equipment: 5-8 years
e Vehicles: 4-5 years

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as
required, but at least annually.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is
recognized in the consolidated statement of policyholders' results.

Life takaful mathematical reserve

The provision for life takaful contracts is calculated on the basis of an actuarial
valuation method.

Additional reserve

The additional reserve includes amounts reserved for claims Incurred but Not
Reported ("IBNR") at the consolidated financial position date in addition to other
contingencies and any differences that may arise. Provision based on the
Management's judgement and the Group's prior experience is maintained for the
cost of settling claims incurred but not reported at the financial position date.

Provision for employees' end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees' final salary and length of service,
subject to the completion of a minimum service period in accordance with
relevant labor law and the employees' contracts. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is
unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of
termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, in addition to the end of service
benefits, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries. The Group's
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the consolidated financial position date, which have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of estimated credit losses involves estimates of loss given default
and probability of default. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in
case of default by customer. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood
of default in the future. The Group makes these estimates using reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information, which is based on assumptions for the
future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other.

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable is made when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant
amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are
not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and
a provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical
recovery rates.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at
each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change the utility of
certain software and equipment.

Provision for outstanding claims and IBNR

Considerable judgment by the Management is required in the estimation of
amounts due to contract holders arising from claims made under insurance
contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on significant assumptions
about several factors involving varying, and possible if significant, degrees of
judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from Management's
estimates resulting in the future changes in the estimated liabilities. The Group
generally estimates its claims based on previous experience. Claims requiring
court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. The Management
reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not reported,
on a monthly basis.

Reinsurance

The Group is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its
reinsurers. The Group monitors on a quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with
and the strength of its reinsurers.
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Statement of consolidated policyholders' results by line of business:
Year ended 31 December 2022:

Marine
and General
aviation accident Fire Life Total

Revenue

Premiums written 241,341 2,281,468 204,571 173,358 2,900,738

Less: reinsurance ceded (214,068) (1,492,279) (171,233) (120,717) (1,998,297)

Net premiums 27,273 789,189 33,338 52,641 902,441

Movement in unearned

premiums (7,594) (57,708) (9,188) - (74,490)

Net premiums earned 19,679 731,481 24,150 52,641 827,951

Policy issuance fees 4,055 21,862 985 176 27,078

Reinsurance commissions

earned 38,483 133,141 28,502 6,267 206,393

Total revenue 62,217 886,484 53,637 59,084 1,061,422

Expenses

Net claims incurred (40,765) (215,443) (4,624) (38,757) (299,589)

Retakaful share of claims 33,527 174,771 4,390 22,937 235,625

incurred

Policy acquisition costs (1,007) (122,293) (9,687) (1,677) (134,664)

Provision for outstanding claims 5,680 122,492 (7,400) 15,217 135,989

Total expenses (2,565) (40,473) (17,321) (2,280) (62,639)

Surplus by line of business 59,652 846,011 36,316 56,804 998,783

Allocation of general and

administrative expenses (18,890) (702,193) (23,184) (50,533) (794,800)

Net surplus from insurance

operations 40,762 143,818 13,132 6,271 203,983

Net investments and other

income 919 34,157 1,128 2,458 38,662

Net surplus from takaful

insurance operations 41,681 177,975 14,260 8,729 242,645

Income from leasing activities 163,238

Expenses related to leasing

activities (69,758)
326,125

Management fees from

policyholders* - below (65,303)

Net surplus transferred to

policyholders’ fund 260,822

Other comprehensive income

for the year:

Equity investments at fair value

through other comprehensive

income

Less: Net change in fair value

arising during the year (5,091)

Total other comprehensive

profits for the year (5,091)

Net surplus including other

comprehensive income 255,731
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Statement of consolidated policyholders' results by line of business:
Year ended 31 December 2021:

Revenue
Premiums written

Less: reinsurance ceded

Net premiums
Movement in unearned
premiums

Net premiums earned

Policy issuance fees
Reinsurance commissions
earned

Total revenue

Expenses

Net claims incurred

Retakaful share of claims
incurred

Policy acquisition costs
Provision for outstanding claims
Total expenses

Surplus/ (deficit) by line of
business

Allocation of general and
administrative expenses
Net surplus/ (deficit) from
insurance operations

Net investments and
income

Net surplus/ (deficit) from
takaful insurance operations

Income from leasing activities

Expenses related to leasing
activities

other

Management fees from
policyholders* - below

Net surplus transferred to
policyholders’ fund

Other comprehensive income
for the year:

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Less: Net change in fair value
arising during the year

Total other comprehensive
losses for the year

Marine
and General
aviation accident Fire Life Total

182,872 1,966,181 331,333 105,883 2,586,269
(156,138) (1,321,621) (320,263) (67,259) (1,865,281)
26,733 644,560 11,070 38,624 720,988
152 466,946 14,977 - 482,075
26,886 1,111,506 26,047 38,624 1,203,063
3,342 29,909 1,464 1,349 36,064
34,153 74,046 29,663 2,978 140,840
64,381 1,215,461 57,174 42 951 1,379,967
(27,347) (1,158,429) (271,102) (71,482) (1,528,360)
20,605 941,538 250,354 45,006 1,257,503
(2,697) (87,861) (9,021) (13,296) (112,875)
(5,624) 394,813 23,090 (11,091) 401,188
(15,063) 90,061 (6,679) (50,863) 17,456
49,318 1,305,522 50,495 (7,912) 1,397,423
(23,970) (990,968) (23,223) (34,435) (1,072,596)
25,348 314,554 27,272 (42,347) 324,827
9,953 411,463 9,642 14,298 445 356
35,301 726,017 36,914 (28,049) 770,183
89,839
(87,087)
772,935
(154,587)
618,348
6,968
6,968
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Marine
and General
aviation accident Fire Life Total
Revenue
Net surplus including other
comprehensive income 625,316

* In accordance with the Parent Company's Articles of Association, shareholders are entitled
to management fees from policyholders up to 20% of the total premiums written and
investment income. In its meeting held on 21 June 2017, the Board of Directors resolved to
calculate management fees at 20% of net profit instead of 20% of revenue as a right to
shareholders in the results of policyholders starting from 1 April 2017 until further notice.

35



Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C.P)

and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of policyholders’ assets, liabilities and fund

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment deposits

Accounts and other receivables
Premiums receivable

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Due from related parties

Goodwill

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Retakaful contribution receivables
Intangible assets

Equipment

Total assets

Liabilities and Policyholders’ fund
Liabilities

Outstanding claims reserve

Unearned premiums

Incurred but not reported claims reserve
Provision for unallocated claim settlement expenses
Lease payables

Payables and accrued expenses
Amount due to shareholders

Qard Hassan from shareholders

Total liabilities

Policyholders’ fund

Policyholders' fund balance as at the beginning of
the year

Net surplus of policyholders for the year

Fair value reserve at beginning of the year
Change in fair value during the year

Fair value reserve at end of the year

Total policyholders’ deficit at end of the year
Total liabilities and policyholders’ fund

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
137,418 58,888
1,159,492 1,078,492
1,705,858 1,483,062
1,383,232 1,561,417
114,877 119,967
11,377 11,377
409,766 409,766
2,235,422 2,170,807
1,446,997 1,752,826
1,278 8,953
15,712 32,704
8,621,429 8,688,259
2,577,261 2,866,200
546,886 472,397
130,415 227,779
27,782 18,682
17,336 16,371
4,726,040 4,783,087
7,073,465 7,037,230
1,625,611 1,625,611
16,724,796 17,047,357
(8,203,958) (8,822,306)
260,822 618,348
(7,943,136) (8,203,958)
(155,140) (162,108)
(5,091) 6,968
(160,231) (155,140)
(8,103,367) (8,359,098)
8,621,429 8,688,259
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18-

Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management
personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are
approved by the Group's management. Transactions between the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Parent Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below:

2022 2021
Shareholders
Consolidated statement of profit or
loss:
Salaries and short-term benefits 15,000 15,000
Consolidated statement of financial
position:
Investments at fair value through other 860,768 1109628

comprehensive income

e Transactions with related parties are subject to the approval of the shareholder’s
general assembly.

* Investment at fair value through other comprehensive income above include the
Group's investments in the shares of subsidiaries of the Ultimate Parent
Company (Investment Dar Company and subsidiaries) amounting to KD 457,035
(2021: KD 669,856).

2022 2021
Policyholders
Key management compensation:
Salaries and short-term benefits 82,040 118,908
End of service benefits 10,147 7,597
92,187 126,505

Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance, and is reconciled
to Group's profit or loss.

The Group's presented segments are investment, Takaful insurance and car rental.
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The relevant sector information is as follows:

Shareholders

Year ended 31
December 2022

Revenue

Profit for the year

As at 31 December
2022

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

Shareholders

Year ended 31
December 2021

Revenue

Profit/ (loss) for the
year — restated

As at 31 December
2021

Total assets —
restated

Total liabilities

Net assets —
restated

Policyholders

Year ended 31
December 2022

Gross revenue

Profit/ (loss) for
the year

As at 31 December
2022

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

Policyholders

Year ended
31 December 2021

Gross revenue

Profit/ (loss) for the
year

As at 31 December
2021

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

Takaful

Investment . Unallocated Total
insurance
54,218 65,303 - 119,521
17,705 65,303 - 83,008
4,117,858 - 108,184 4,226,042
(41,286) - (103,077) (144,363)
4,076,572 - 5,107 4,081,679
141,079 154,587 - 295,666
141,079 154,587 (334,751) (39,085)
4,306,467 - 69,266 4,375,733
- - (116,415) (116,415)
4,306,467 - (47,149) 4,259,318
Investment . Takaful Car rental Unallocated Total
insurance
38,662 1,061,422 153,238 - 1,253,322
38,662 203,983 83,480 (65,303) 260,822
1,329,619 6,895,353 396,457 - 8,621,429
- (16,517,788) (207,008) - (16,724,796)
1,329,619 (9,622,435) 189,449 - (8,103,367)
445 356 1,379,967 89,839 - 1,915,162
445,356 324,825 2,752 (154,587) 618,348
1,198,459 6,592,357 417,412 480,031 8,688,259
- (16,994,669) (52,688) - (17,047,357)
1,198,459 (10,402,312) 364,724 480,031 (8,359,098)
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20- Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group's
shareholders and policyholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement
of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key
management recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk

management systems in place.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for establishing an

overall risk management function and approving risk strategies and principles.

Law No. 24 of 1961, Law No.13 of 1962 and Decree No. 5 of 1989, and the rules and
regulations issued by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry provide the regulatory
framework for the insurance industry in the State of Kuwait. All insurance companies

operating in Kuwait are required to follow these rules and regulations.

On 1 September 2019, the new Insurance Law No. 125 of 2019 has been issued and
is effective from 28 August 2019. This law supersedes the Law No. 24 of 1961. On 11
March 2022, the Executive Regulations of Law No. 125 of 2019 regarding the
Regulation of Insurance were issued. All entities subject to the provisions of Article 2
of Law No. 125 of 2019 regarding the Regulation of Insurance shall regularize their
status in accordance with the provisions of the Law and such regulations within one

year from the publish date of such Resolution.

The following are the key regulations governing the operations of the Group:

a- For the life and capital insurance contracts issued in Kuwait, the full

mathematical reserves are to be retained in Kuwait.

b-  For marine insurance contracts, at least 15% of the premiums collected in the

previous year are to be retained in Kuwait.

c- For all other types of takaful insurance, at least 30% of the premiums collected

in the previous year are to be retained in Kuwait.

The funds retained in Kuwait should be invested as under:

a- A minimum of 40% of the funds are to be in the form of cash deposits in a bank

operating in Kuwait

b- A maximum of 25% could be invested in foreign securities (foreign government

bonds or foreign securities — bonds and shareholding companies)

c- A maximum of 30% should be invested in Kuwaiti companies' shares or bonds

d- A maximum of 15% should be in a current account with a bank operating in

Kuwait

The remaining value may be invested in bonds issued or guaranteed by the
Government of Kuwait, properties based in Kuwait or loans secured by first mortgage

of properties based in Kuwait.

The Group's senior management is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
above regulation and has a delegated authorities and responsibilities from the board

of directors to ensure compliance.
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20-1

Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk that actual claims payable to policyholders in respect of
insured events exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or amounts of claims are more than expected.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group
underwrites mainly marine and aviation, fire and general accident, motor and life
risks. These are regarded as short-term insurance contracts as claims are normally
advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to
mitigate insurance risk.

1-

Non-life insurance contracts

The Group principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts:
Marine-Cargo, Hull Comprehensive & Third Party Liability, Fire, House-holders
Comprehensive, Contractors All Risks, Erection All Risks, Machinery Breakdown,
Electronic Equipment, Burglary, Personal Accident, Cash in Transit, Fidelity
Guarantee, Plate Glass, Workmen Compensation, Third Party Liability,
Professional  Indemnity, Bankers Blanket, Travel Assistance, Motor
Comprehensive, and Motor Third Party Liability and Healthcare contracts. Risks
under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve-month duration.

For general insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from climate
changes, natural disasters and terrorist activities.

Marine and aviation

For marine insurance the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and
accidents resulting in the total or partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that
policies are well diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered. The
Group has reinsurance cover to limit losses for any individual claim up to KD
1,400,000 (31 December 2021: KD1,400,000).

Fire and accident

For property insurance contracts, the main risks are fire and business
interruption. In recent years the Group has only underwritten policies for
properties containing fire detection equipment.

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the
properties and contents insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining
replacement contents and the time taken to restart operations which leads to
business interruptions are the main factors that influence the level of claims. The
Group has reinsurance cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual
claim up to KD 3,250,000 (31 December 2021: KD 3,250,000).
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Motor

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the
replacement or repair of vehicles. In recent years the Group has primarily
underwritten comprehensive polices for owner/ drivers over 21 years of age. The
Group has reinsurance cover to limit losses for any individual claim up to KD
600,000 (31 December 2021: KD 600,000).

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement
costs of, and repairs to motor vehicles are the key factors that influence the level of
claims.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by
the Group, type of risk insured and by industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of
insurance contracts. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks
are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. Further, strict
claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent
claims are all policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the
Group. The Group further enforces a policy of actively managing and prompt
pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future
developments that can negatively impact the Group.

The Group has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on
certain contracts as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit
exposure to catastrophic events (e.g., hurricanes, earthquakes, and flood damages).

The table below sets out the concentration of non-life insurance contract liabilities by
type of contract.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross Reinsurers' Net Gross Reinsurers' Net
liabilities share liabilities liabilities  share liabilities
Marine
and
aviation 233,747 214,068 19,679 183,023 156,138 26,885
General
accident 2,223,760 1,492,279 731,481 2,433,127 1,321,621 1,111,506
Fire 195,383 171,233 24,150 346,310 320,263 26,047
Total 2,652,890 1,877,580 775,310 2,962,460 1,798,022 1,164,438

Key assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Group's past claims
development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim
costs, claim handling costs, claim inflation factors and claim numbers for each
accident year. Additional qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence,
changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming, economic conditions,
as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which
external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the
estimates.
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2-

Life insurance contracts

For life insurance the main risks are claims for medical, death or permanent
disability. The underwriting strategy for the life of business is to ensure that
policies are well diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefit.
This is achieved through the use of medical screening in order to ensure that
pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical history. For
healthcare contracts the most significant risks arise from lifestyle changes,
epidemics and medical science and technology improvements.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured
by the Group, type of risk insured and by industry.

The main risks that the Group is exposed to are as follows.

*  Mortality risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being
different than expected.

e Morbidity risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience
being different than expected.

» Longevity risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than
expected.

e Investment return risk — risk of loss arising from actual returns being different
than expected.

» Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different
than expected.

e Policyholder decision risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder
experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured
by the Group as life business mainly written in the Gulf countries.

The Group's underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well
diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely
achieved through the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing
takes account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular
review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims
handling procedures. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right not to renew individual
policies, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to pursue third
parties for payment of some or all costs. The Group further enforces a policy of
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure
to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Group.

For contracts where death or disability are the insured risks the significant factors
that could increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread
changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than
expected.

The insurance risks described above are also affected by the contract holders'
right to pay reduced or no future premiums, to terminate the contract completely.
As a result, the amount of insurance risk is also subject to contract holder
behavior.
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20-2

The table below sets out the concentration of life insurance by type of contract.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross Reinsurers' Net Gross  Reinsurers' Net
liabilities share liabilities liabilities share liabilities
Life takaful
insurance 173,358 120,717 52,641 105,883 67,259 38,624

All life insurance contracts are in Kuwait. The analysis above would not be materially
different if based on the countries in which the counterparties are situated.

Material judgment is required in determining the liabilites and in the choice of
assumptions. Assumptions in use are based on past experience, current internal data,
external market indices and benchmarks which reflect current observable market prices
and other published information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at
the date of valuation. Assumptions are further evaluated on a continuous basis in order
to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.

Life insurance contract estimates are either based on current assumptions or calculated
using the assumptions established at the time the contract was issued, in which case a
margin for risk and adverse deviation is generally included. Assumptions are made in
relation to future deaths, voluntary terminations, investment returns and administration
expenses. If the liabilities are not adequate, the assumptions are altered to reflect the
current estimates.

Financial risks

The Group's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, profit rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below.

20-2-1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one par ty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group's credit policy and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group seeks to avoid
undue concentrations of risks with individuals or Group of customers in specific locations
or business through diversification of its activities.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
consolidated financial position.

31 December 31 Decem.ber 31 Decernber
2022 2021 (audited 2020 (audited —
— restated) restated)
Shareholders
Cash and cash equivalents 43,110 50,251 11,169
Investment deposits 82,915 61,628 196,585
Other receivables 5,886 10,402 9,340
131,911 122,281 217,094
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31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Policyholders
bank balances 137,418 58,888
Investment deposits 1,159,492 1,078,492
Accounts and other receivables 1,705,858 1,483,062
Premiums receivable 1,383,232 1,561,417
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 2,235,422 2,170,807
Retakaful contribution receivables 1,446,997 1,752,826

8,068,419 8,105,492

20-2-2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they
fall due. To limit this risk, the Management has arranged diversified funding sources,
manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors liquidity on a regular basis. The
undiscounted cash outflows for financial liabilities are not materially different from
those presented below.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

Up to one Above one 31 December
year year 2022
31 December 2022
Shareholders
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 43,110 - 43,110
Investment deposits 82,915 - 82,915
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss ) 262,191 262,191
Due from policyholders 36,235 36,235
Investments at fair value
through other comprehensive - 860,768 860,768
income ‘
Investment properties - 2,853,938 2,853,938
Equipment and property - 80,999 80,999
Other receivables - 5,886 5,886
126,025 4,100,017 4,226,042
Liabilities
Other payables (144,363) - (144,363)
(144,363) - (144,363)
Net exposure (18,338) 4,100,017 4,081,679
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Up to one Above one 31 December
year year 2022
31 December 2022
Policyholders
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 137,418 137,418
Investment deposits 1,159,492 1,159,492
Accounts and other receivables 1,705,858 1,705,858
Premiums receivable 1,383,232 1,383,232
Investments at fair value
through other comprehensive 114,877 114,877
income
Due from related parties 11,377 11,377
Goodwill 409,766 409,766
Reinsurers’ share of 2,235,422 2,235,422
outstanding claims
Retqkaful contribution 1,446,997 1,446,997
receivables
Intangible assets 1,278 1,278
Equipment 15,712 15,712
4,386,000 4,235,429 8,621,429
Liabilities
Outstanding claims reserve (2,577,261) (2,577,261)
Unearned premiums (546,886) (546,886)
Incurred but not reported claims (130,415) (130,415)
reserve
Provision for unallocated claim (27,782) (27,782)
settlement expenses
Lease payables (17,336) (17,336)
Accounts and other payables (4,726,040) (4,726,040)
Due to shareholders (7,073,465) (7,073,465)
Qard Hassan from
shareholders (1,625,611) (1,625,611)
(4,743,376) (11,981,420) (16,724,796)
Net exposure (357,376) (7,745,991) (8,103,367)
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E Above one 31 December
B 31 December 2021 Up to one year year 2021 (audited —
restated)
Il
Shareholders
[ | Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 50,251 - 50,251
N Investment deposits 61,628 - 61,628
Investments at fair value
[ | through profit or loss ) 262,838 262,838
Investments at fair value
X through other - 1,109,629 1,109,629
comprehensive income
X
Investment properties - 2,872,372 2,872,372
W Equipment and property - 8,613 8,613
' Other receivables - 10,402 10,402
E 111,879 4,263,854 4,375,733
Liabilities
[ Other payables (116,415) - (116,415)
(116,415) - (116,415)
| Net exposure (4,536) 4,263,854 4,259,318
] Policyholders
' Assets
B Cash and cash equivalents 58,888 - 58,888
K Investment deposits 1,078,492 - 1,078,492
: Accounts and other
. 1,483,062 - 1,483,062
receivables T T
x Premiums receivable 1,561,417 - 1,561,417
. Investments at fair value
X through other - 119,967 119,967
B comprehensive income
Due from related parties 11,377 11,377
N Goodwill - 409,766 409,766
Reinsurers’ share of
outstanding claims 2,170,807 2,170,807
l Retakaful contributio
" receables n 1,752,826 1,752,826
Intangible assets 8,953 8,953
[ Equipment 32,704 32,704
x 4,181,859 4,506,400 8,688,259
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Up to one vear Above one 31 December
P y year 2021
Liabilities
Outstanding claims reserve - (2,866,200) (2,866,200)
Unearned premiums - (472,397) (472,397)
lnc'urred but not reported ) (227,779) (227,779)
claims reserve
Prqvnsmn for unallocated . (18,682) (18,682)
claim settlement expenses
Lease payables (7,638) (8,733) (16,371)
Accounts and other (4,783,087) ) (4,783,087)
payables
Due to shareholders - (7,037,230) (7,037,230)
Qard Hassan from
shareholders - (1,625,611) (1,625,611)
(4,790,725) (12,256,632) (17,047,357)

Net exposure (608,866) (7,750,232) (8,359,098)

20-2-3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk),
market interest rates (profit rate risk) and market prices (equity price risk).

The Group limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by monitoring
the developments in markets.

a-

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is not exposed to significant
currency risk because the Group's significant transactions, assets and liabilities
are dominated in its functional currency.

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect
future profitability or the fair values of financial instruments. As the Group's
interest-bearing assets are deposits with banks mostly at fixed rates over the
contractual term, the Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group does not have any
interest-bearing liabilities.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its equity investments.
Equity investments are classified as investments at fair value through profit or
loss and investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group
diversifies its investments. There has been no change during the year in the
methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.
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21-
211

Fair value measurement

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

31 December

31 December

31 December

Shareholders’ assets and
liabilities

Financial assets

At amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment deposits

Other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
Investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortized
cost

Accounts and other payables

2022 2021 (audited 2020 (audited
— restated) — restated)

43,110 50,251 11,169
82,915 61,628 196,585
5,886 10,402 9,340
131,911 122,281 217,094
860,768 1,109,629 931,764
262,191 262,838 223,337
1,122,959 1,372,467 1,155,101
144,363 116,415 90,989
144,363 116,415 90,989

Policyholders' assets and
liabilities

Financial assets

At amortized cost:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment deposits

Accounts and other receivables
Premiums receivable
Reinsurance share of outstanding
claims

Retakaful contribution receivables
Due from related parties
Financial assets at fair value
Investments at fair value through othe
comprehensive income

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

137,418 58,888
1,159,492 1,078,492
1,705,858 1,483,062
1,383,232 1,561,417
2,235,422 2,170,807
1,446,997 1,752,826
11,377 11,377
8,079,796 8,116,869
114,877 119,967
114,877 119,967
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized

cost

Unearned premiums 546,886 472,397
Accounts and other payables 4,726,040 4,783,087
Due to shareholders 7,073,465 7,037,230
Qard Hassan from shareholders 1,625,611 1,625,611

13,972,002 13,918,325

Management considers that the carrying amounts of loans and receivables and
financial liabilities, which are stated at amortized cost, approximate their fair values.

21-2  Fair value measurement
Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or p

aid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Group measures financial instruments at fair value and
measurement details are disclosed below. In the opinion of the Group's management,
the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and liabilities, which are carried at

amortized costs, are considered a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

21-3  Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed i
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of sign
inputs to the measurement, as follows:

n the
a fair
ificant

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,

derived from prices); and

* Level3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data (i.e., unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based

on the lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

in the

consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Shareholders:
Investments at fair value through 262,191 - - 262,191
profit or loss
Investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 441,096 - 419,672 860,768
703,287 - 419,672 1,122,959
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31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Policyholders
Investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 16,389 98,488 114,877
16,389 98,488 114,877
31 December 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Shareholders:
Investments at fair value through 262,838 - - 262,838
profit or loss
Investments at fair value through 556,601 - 553,028 1,109,629
other comprehensive income
819,439 - 553,028 1,372,467
Policyholders
Investments at fair value through 21,479 - 98,488 119,967
other comprehensive income
21,479 - 98,488 119,967

There have been no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the reporting period.

Measurement at fair value

The valuation methods and techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.

a- Quoted securities: All the listed equity securities are publicly traded in stock
exchanges. Fair values have been determined by reference to their quoted bid prices

at the reporting date.

b- Unquoted securities: Unlisted securities are measured at fair value estimated using
various models like discounted cash flow model, which includes some assumptions
that are not supportable by observable market prices or rates.

c- Managed funds and portfolios: The underlying investments of managed funds and
portfolios primarily comprise of local and foreign quoted and unquoted securities
whose fair values have been determined based on the fund's /portfolio's managers’

report as at the reporting dates.

Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group's financial assets classified in Level3 uses valuation techniques based on

significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The Group's finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 3 fair values. Valuation techniques are selected based on the
characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximizing the use of

market-based information.

The valuation techniques used for instruments categorized in Level 3 are described

below:
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (e.g.,
unquoted securities) is determined by using valuation techniques. Fair value for the
unquoted securities investments is approximately the summation of the estimated value of
underlying investments as if realized on the consolidated statement of financial position
date. The investment managers, in determining the fair value of these investments, use a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each financial position date. Investment managers used techniques such as discounted
cash flow analysis, recent transactions prices and market multiples to determine fair

value.

21-4 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at
fair value:

31 December 2022
Investment property

Investment
building in Egypt
Hotel
apartments  in
Zamzam Tower
in Holly Mecca

31 December 2021
Investment property

Investment
building in Egypt
Hotel
apartments in
Zamzam Tower
in Holly Mecca

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 2,770,951 - 2,770,951
- - 82,987 82,987
- 2,770,951 82,987 2,853,938
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 2,765,831 - 2,765,831
- - 106,541 106,541
- 2,765,831 106,541 2,872,372

Fair value of the Group's investment property is estimated based on appraisals
performed by an independent, professionally qualified property valuer. The significant
inputs and assumptions are developed in close consultation with management.

Contingent commitments and liabilities

The Group is a defendant in a number of legal cases filed by Takaful contract holders
in respect of claims subject to dispute with the Group including a legal case filed by a
government body against the Group for an amount of KD 3,636,022, which the Group
has provided for in the accounts and other payable. Although the Court of Appeal
passed its ruling in favor of the State and the Parent Company filed appeal in
cassation before the Court of Cassation, the Parent Company has made provisions
which, in its opinion, are adequate to cover any resultant liabilities.
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23-

24-

Capital management objectives

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and provide adequate return to its shareholders through
the optimization of the capital structure.

The capital consists of total equity. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and other variables
associated risk characteristics of the Group’s underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors

its capital by way of return on equity.

Effect of prior years adjustments

Previously, the auditor's report included qualified opinion about the value of Qard
Hassan and due from policyholders, as no study was conducted to measure whether
there are impairment losses on those balances. The Group's management studied
the impairment of those balances, taking into account the requirements of IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”. Such study concluded that it is necessary to recognize

provision for expected credit losses for the entire balance retrospectively.

The following is a statement of the effect of adjustments made based on the Group’s
management study on those balances:

Item Balance Adjustments Balance
as after effect
previously of
reported adjustments
First: Effect on assets:
Qard Hassan as at 31 December 1,463,111 (1,463,111) -
2020
{dard Hassan as at 31 December 1,463,111 (1,463,111) -
2021
e from policyholders as at 31 6,310,596 (6,310,596) -
[Jezcember 2020
S Lua from policyholders as at 31 6,602,656 (6,602,656) -
- becember 2021
~ Mlecond: Effect on equity:
Actumulated Losses as at 31 (6,917,421) (7,773,707) (14,691,128)
liscamber 2020
Arclimulated losses as at 31 (6,664,446) (8,065,767) (14,730,213)
tecamber 2021
fhired Effect on consolidated
ataismant of profit or loss for the
yenar anded 31 December 2021:
Bk pirofit 252,975 (292,000) (39,025)
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25-  Going Concern

The Company’s accumulated losses amounted to KD 6,918,129 on 31 December 2022.
This indicates the existence of risk associated with the Parent Company’s going concern.
However, the Company’s management believes that despite significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to address the above risk, the Parent Company is able to generate
profits and positive cash flows from its future operations, which will eliminate the going
concern risk.
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